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Incependent Auditors Report

To the Members of SANHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited (the "Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are refevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

See Note 26 to the financial statements

‘ The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

[ The Company is principally engaged in the | Our audit procedures included:
business of owning and operating hotels. it's
revenue comprises hotel revenue (including
room revenue, food and beverage revenue and
revenue from recreation and other services).

¢+ Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the key controls of the
revenue recognition process.

+ Tested the Company's revenue recognition |

The accounting policies for different revenue accounting policies are consistent with the |
streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial |
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

statements.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Company and there is risk of overstatement of
revenue due fo fraud resulting from pressure to
achieve targets and earnings expectations.

Considering the above, we have identified
revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

applicable accounting standards.

Using statistical sampling basis, tested the
revenue transactions recorded during the year
(including year-end cut off testing), with the
underlying documents such as invoices, bank
collections and other relevant documents, as
applicable.

Tested the journal entries relating to revenue

recognised during the year based on specified
risk-based criteria, to identify unusual or
irregular items.

+ Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating
to the revenue recognition made in the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters sfated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
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invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ QObtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors,

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in ferms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

¢. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income}, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section

133 of the Act.
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 10 April 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 45(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 45{vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective accounting softwares:

In the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with the audit trail
requirements in the respective independent auditor's reports of service organisations available
for part of the year and in the absence of the independent auditor's reports of service
organisations for the balance period, for accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of
account relating to general ledger, food and beverage revenue and procure to pay process, which
are operated by third-party software service providers, we are unable to comment whether audit
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trail feature for the said softwarss was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions, recorded in the respective softwares.

ii. In the absence of an independent auditor's report from 1 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 in
relation to controls at a service organisation for an accounting software used for maintaining the
books of account relating to payroll, which is operated by a third party software service provider,
we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature for the said software was enabled and
operated from 1 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.

ii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the bocks of account
relating to revenue process for the period from 1 April 2024 to 5 September 2024,

iv. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting software
used for maintaining the baoks of account relating to general ledger.

Further, for the accounting softwares for which audit trail feature is enabled and operated
effectively, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during
the course of our audit. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per
the statutory requirements for record retention except for the period where the audit trail was not
enabled or operating effectively.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No..101248W/W-100022

‘Zo\\wl I\‘R‘JM,

Rahul Nayar

Fartner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 29 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25508605BMOLMI3199
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

{i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing fuil particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b)

()

(d

(e)

(i) (a)

(b)

(i)

(@

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were physically verified during the year ended 31 March 2024, In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company. However, original title deeds are under lien
with banks and financial institutions for the loan facilities availed by the Company. We have
received independent confirmation from security trustee appointed by banks and financial
institutions, who confirmed that they are holding the title deed of the immovable property.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of loan agreement of such limits, there are no
requirements on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans,
or provided guarantee, or provided security to any entity during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(iiiy(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans,
or provided guarantee, or provided security to any entity during the year. Accordingly, clause
3iii)(b) of the: Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

©

(d)

(&)

"

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii) (@)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of lpans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated except for the interest free loan of INR
1,055.70 million [nominal amount] as at 31 March 2025 given to SAMHI Hotels Limited {(Holding
Company), which is repayable at any date after 31 December 2030 as per mutual consent of
the Company and the Holding Company, As informed te us, no repayment of loans and payment
of interest was due in the current year. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the
nature of loan to any party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied
with Section 186(1) of the Act. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
provisions of Section 186 {except for sub-section (1) of the Section 186} of the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is engaged in the business of providing
infrastructural facilities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Duty of excise, Value Added Tax and Sales
tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed inte
GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities,
though there has been a slight delay in one case of deposit of Income Tax and Employees State
Insurance.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025 (Continued)
Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Due Date of
statute dues (INR million) | which the date payment
amount
relates
The Provident 0.29 | March 2019 | 15 April | Not yet paid
Employees’ Fund (Additional 2019
Provident liability due to
Funds Supreme Court
And Judgement)
Miscellaneous
Provisions Act,
1952
Central Goods | Interest [iability 0.67 | April 2021 - | # Not yet paid
and Services | on Goods and March 2022
Tax Act, 2017 | Services Tax
and State
Goods and
Services Tax
Act, 2017

(b)

(viii)

(ix} ()

b

# These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the year ended 31 March
2022.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of Nature of the Amount Paid Period to Forum
the statute | dues {INR under which the where
million) protest amount dispute is
{INR relates (FY) | pending
million)
Finance Excess 90.93 6.69 | 2014-15to Customs,
Act, 1994 availment of 2017-18 Excise and
{Service CENVAT credit Service Tax
tax) and short Appellate
payment of Tribunal
service tax

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

©

(d)

{e)

(f)

00 (a)

{b)

xi) (a)

{b)

(c)

(xif}

(xili)

(xiv) (a)

b)

()

(xvi) (@)

bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans during the year and the term loans
obtained in the previous periods were fully utilised in the respective periods. Accordingly, clause
3(ix){c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f} of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, ne fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connscted to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

{¢)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi}{d} are not applicable.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

{(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutery auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capabie of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

() The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xd(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Qadwul Noyox,

Rahul Nayar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 29 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25508605BMOLMI3199
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A}g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SAMHI JV
Business Hotels Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of SAMH! JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
202§ (Continued)

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

}Zg\kw Ny,
[

Rahul Nayar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 29 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25508605BMOLMI3199
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN UsS101DL201PTC214129

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

{Alt cinounts in Rupees Mitlion, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Noun-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,114.35 216971
Right of use assets 3 19.08 -
Intangibie assets 4 0.61 -
Financial assets
Loans 5 644 59 713,68
Other financial assets 6 (74.44 171.79
Income tax assets (net) 7 21.06 2025
Deferred tax assets {net! 8 31520 -
Other non-current assets 9 17.34 332
Total non-current assets 3.306.67 3,078.7%
Current assets
Inventories 10 578 535
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 8939 53.95
Cash and cash equivalents 12 94,34 105,57
Other financial assets 13 17,93 898
Other curreni assets 14 28 .66 16.29
Total current asseis 236.10 190.14
TOTAL ASSETS 3.542.77 3,268.89
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,247.80 1,247.80
Qther equity 16 {857.72) {1.614.19}
Total equity 390.08 (36639
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 2,847.79 2,942 84
Lease liabilities 17 1210 -
Provisions 19 279 1.50
Total non- current liabilities 2,862.68 2.944.34
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 99.13 43947
Lease liabilities 21 6.98 -
Trade payables 22
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [4.99 302
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 103.50 201,34
enterprises . .
Orher financial liabilities 23 17.83 1066
Other current liabilities 24 46,06 3053
Provisions 25 1.52 0.92
Total current liabilities 290.01 690.94
Total liabilities 3,152.69 3.635.28
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3.542.77 3,268.89

The notes from Note | 10 Noie 46 form an integral part of these financial staternents

As per our report of even date anached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered dceountants

ICAT Firm Registration No.: 101248W/rwW- 100022

(&m N&jw/

For and on behall of Board of Directors of
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limit

Rahul Nayar Rajat Mehra sinyva Chakravarty Anjami' Kumari
Peirtiner recier Divectionr Carapany Secrefary
tembership No : 508605 CHiN: 06813081 DIN' 0853929 Membership No : A33536}

Place: Gurugram 5
Date: 29 M*‘-\n 202

Flace: Gurugram
Date: 28 Mﬂ‘a 1505

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 V\ﬂ'd 2D2S

Place: Gurugram
Date: 2.8 May 125



SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
CIN U5s5101DL201 1PTC214129

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

{A1f amounis in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated) For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 26 (,703.11 1,431.59
Other income 27 £9.93 144.14
Total income 1,793.04 1,575.73
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 91.78 8712
Employee benefits expense 29 178.38 146.65
Onher expenses 32 646.51 587.94
916.67 821.711
Earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation and tax 876,37 754.02
Finance costs 30 34317 460.56
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 91.84 100.96
435.01 561.52
Profit before tax 441.36 192,50
Tax expense/ {credit) 8
Deferred tax {315.18) -
(315.18) -
Profit for the year 756.54 192.50
Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit obligations 29 (0.09) (0.25)
- Income tax relating 1o items mentioned above -
Otiher comprehensive loss, net of tax (0.07) (0.25)
Total comprehensive income for the year 756.47 192.25
Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each) 33
Basic [INR] 6.06 1.54
Diluted [INR] 6.06 1.54

The notes from Note i to Note 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accorumtants

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

D_Al'\UJ Nh‘jwf

Rahul Nayar
Partner
Membership No.: 508605

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 Mo\a 2023

DIN: 056813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 2.9 IW!U 013

¢

Tanya Chakeavarty
Director
DIN: 08539291

Place: Gurugram
Date: 2% Mﬂu 202s

o

Compary Secretary
Membership No.: A35561

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 Moy 2025



SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101DL2011PTC214129

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
{4it amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

A, Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Provisions/Tiabilities no longer required written back
Loss allowance for trade receivables
Finance costs
Interest income
Lassf(gain} on sale of property, plant and equipment
Unwinding of discount on security deposit
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Operating profit before movement in assets and liabilities
{[ncrsase) in inventories
(merease) / Decrease in trade receivables
Increase in other financial assets
{Increase) / Decrease in other assets
Decrease in trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions
Increase in other financial liabilitias
Cash generated from operations
[ncome taxes paid - (neth
Net cash generated from operafing activities

B. (Cash flows [rom investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Sale of property, plant and equipment
Repayment of loan by holding company
Bank deposits matured
Bank deposits made
Interest received

Net cash generated from investing activities

€. Cash flows from flnancing activities
Repayment of long term bomowings
Loan received from Holding Company
Repayment of [oan from helding company
Proceeds/{repayment) from current borrowings - nat
Payment of lease liabilities
Finance costs paid
Net cash generated used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

i.  Compenents of Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balancex with banks |
- ON cutTent acoounts

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
44136 192.50
91.84 10096
- (3.49)
254 -
34317 460.56
(89.45) (135.75)
1.04 (0.30)
013 -
- 0.08
790.37 614.55
0.43) (0.25)
{37.98) 2424
(12.19) (4.21)
(18.77) 24.10
(90.87) (1549}
1553 (167}
1.80 (0.31)
3.64 414
65L.10 645.10
(0.28) (9.22)
650,82 635.88
(41.99) {20.86)
0.84 1.08
124.39 187.86
161.50 139.35
{161.50) (268.00)
3338 181.15
116,62 270.58
{71.10} (911.70)
366,00 500,00
{366.00) -
{365.43) (3.01)
(393) -
(338.21) {43697}
(778.67) (B51.68)
(11.23) 54.78
105.57 5079
94.34 105.57
As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.19 020
94,15 105.37
94.34 105.57




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Privaie Limited

CIN USS101DLZN IPTC214129

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
{4H amounts in Rupees Miffion, unless otherwise stated)

ii. Movement in Financial Liabilities (including interest accrued)

Opening Balance

Chamges from financing cash flows

Loan received from Holding Company

Repayment of loan from holding company
Repayment of long term borrewings
Procecdsf(repaymeant) from curreni botrowings - net
Finance costs paid

Other now cash changes
Finance costs
Adjustment against loan to holding company

Closing Balance

ili. Movement in bease Liabilities is as follows (refer note 44)

Particulars

Opening Balance

Additions

Amount recognised as interest expense
Payment of lease liabilities

Closing Balance

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3,381.66 428998
366.00 500.00
(366.00) =
(71.10) 911.70)
(365.43) 30D
(33821 {436.97)
342.00 457,64
= (512.24)
2,950.92 3.383.66
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
21.84 -
1.17
(3.93)
19.08 -

i, The cash flows from operating activities section of Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the Tndirect Method' as set cut in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash

Flows".

The notes from Note 1 1o Note 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ECAI Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022

Bﬂl«u’ Noulm, ]

Rahul Nayar djat Vchra
FPartner Director
Membership No : 508605 DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 2% Mau 2028

Place; Gurugram
Date; 24 Moy 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limite

nya Chakravarty
Director
DIN: 08539291

Place: Gurugram
Date: 18 May 2025

AnjanaXumari
Company Secretary
Membership Mo.: A33561

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 N‘ﬂ'd 202G
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a Company domiciled in India. The
Company was incorporated in India on 15 February 2011 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act
and is limited by shares. The registered office of the Company is at Caspia Hotels Delhi, District Centre
Crossing, Opp. Galaxy Toyota Outer Ring Road, Haider Pur, Shalimar Bagh, New Delhi, India, 110088,

The Company is a hotel development and investment company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has two hotels under it (Courtyard by Marriott, Bangalore and Fairfield by Marriott,
Bangalore) which are operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A, Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board
of Directors on 28 May 2025,

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 2.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basts except for the following items, which
are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

Items Measurement Basis
Financial assets and liabilities i.c., Fair Value
derivative instruments

D. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

i)

ii)

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is:

Leases

Critical judgements in determining the lease period:

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it
is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating
the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset
to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in the future possible periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances.

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated
or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are;

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources,

iii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows,
obsolescence, demand, competition and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful
lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each
reporting date.

Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates. Due
to the estimates involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

o




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(4!l amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

v) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Also, refer Note 37 for further disclosures.

vi) Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probabie that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

vii) Measurement of expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

E. Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing
all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Holding
Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information
is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participanis at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(4!l amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1y

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 37.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any,

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company,
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

2)

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
deprectable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ {up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Management estimate | Useful life as per Schedule
of Useful Life I1 to the Companies Act,
2013
Building 15-60 years 60 years
Computers and accessories 3-6 years 3-6 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 years 10 years
Vehicles 8 vears 8 years
Office equipment 5-10 years 3 years

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act 2013,

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life (at present three years). The amortization period and the amortization
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method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Ifthe expected useful life of the asset is si gnificantly
different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity,

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amoertised cost;

- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); or

- Equity investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual tenms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
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payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Al financial assets not classifled as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of. principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).
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Financial assets: Subsequent meastrement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
at amortised cost | interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
at FVOCI effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or Joss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
investments as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
at FVOCI part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in

OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial labilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset,

Ifthe Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
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the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsesting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest free loans

The Company has provided interest free loan to its holding company. Such interest free loans are measured
at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash flows and
discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans. The
difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans has been debited to other equity in
the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs and interest
income is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Non-convertible debentures

The Company had issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as financial
liability in books and carried at amortised cost.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component. As the risks associated
with the underlying variable are not closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has been
separately accounted for from the NCDs in other equity. The equity component was fair valued through
profit or loss at each balance sheet date till their maturity in the previous year.,

Modification of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantialty different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Fingncial liabilities:
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified

terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
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4) Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

-significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for two years or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

-other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition,

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward- looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVQCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

B. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated,
if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of
CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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5) Inventories

6)

8)

9

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory
to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO") method is used.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that ‘(i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates at
each reporting date.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period
during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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10) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits

(c)

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is less
than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit
payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution aiready paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future
payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obli gation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations ~ Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
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11)

12)

employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that refiects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e., on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the Company
has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time,

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing, the
same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under an
obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer),

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and other services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services (including banquet and
allied services) relating to hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale
of food and beverages which is recognised at a point in time once the rooms are occupied, food and
beverages are sold and other services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established,

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
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no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on
a net basis.

14) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax, It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable rightto set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for
* temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that:
- is not a business combination; and
at the time of transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and (ii) does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.
[f the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then
future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the
business plans of the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
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extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets and they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may eam revenue and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the Company’s other components. and for which discrete financial information is available. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating segments
used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to
allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti - dilutive.

17) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a coniract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration,

As a Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative standalone prices.
However, for the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and
account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
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incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term, unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the
cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the
right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on
the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if the rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate,

The Company determine its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

® fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

® amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

® the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early,

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an purchase, extension or termination option
or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value

assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

o1
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.
18) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the Company does
not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense and tax expense.

19) Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.
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SAMMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS100DL2011 PTC2141 29

Naotes to the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AU amowtts in Raspees Mitlion, witless odterwise stated)

5 Non-current flmancial assets - Loans
Unsecrred. considered good)

Loan to related party
Loan ko holding company (refer note 38)

Imterest free loan

As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
B 59 71368
644,59 T13.68

As on 21 Mareh 2025, the Company has provided inferest free loan to holding company amounting lo INR 543.53 {31 March 2024 - INR 484 42} which is repayable a1 any date afier 31 December 2030 as per

mual
requirements

y and the holding

of the Comp

Imterest bearing loan

pany. The loan is provided in [ndian Rupees These loans were advanced 1o holding comg

for

project

and b

Furp

As on 31 March 2023, the Company has provided loan to holding company amounting to INR 101 06 (31 March 2024 - INR. 229.26) including accrued interest of TNR, 2 58 (31 March 2024 - [NR. 6 39} which
is repayable afier 3 years from the date of first disburement i.e. 21 fanuary 2022. The loan is given st interest rate of 11.50% pa {31 March 2024 - 11.50% pa) The loan is provided in Indian Rupees. These

4 and b

-F PP 9

loans were 1 to holding company for 2 project

Druring the previous year, the Company has extended the term of such interest bearing loan to & years from the date of first disbursement

Louns and advances to specified person

Name of Borrower Asat3t March202s|  ° '°;m ':::: and | at 31 March 2024 % to total boan and advances
ISAM]-II Hotels Limited (Holding C ) 644,59 10044 T13 68 100%

& Noo-current finawcisl assets - Others As al As at
(Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date)™# 16543 165 20
Security deposits 9.01 659

174,44 171,79
* Includes interest accrued on bank depasits amounting to INR 0.4% (31 March 2024 - INR 0 26)
# Includes bank deposits under lien amounting lo INR 164.94 {31 March 2024 INR. 164.94)
T Imcome tax assels As at As at
31 March 202% 31 March 2024
Tax deducted at source 2106 2025
21.86 .25
&  Income tax For the year emded For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A; The major compoaents of income tax expense/(income) are
Recogmized im profit or loss
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (315.18) -
(315.18) -
For the year ended For ihe year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Recognised in Other comprah imcome
Income tax on re-measurement loss an defined benefit obligations 002 -
802 =
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax expemse and the accounting profit mudtiplied by Company's dormestic tax rate)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024
o Amoani Y Amownt
Profiti{Loss) belore tax 441 36 19250
Tax using the Company s domestic tax rate 2517 111.08 2517 4845
Tax effect of:
Mon-deductible expenses Qs 028 (016 {03
Benefit arising from a previously imrecognized lax losses 13N (429.48)
Mo recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences - . (152.83) (29419}
Others 066 2, 127.82 24605
EMective tax rate {TL.41) (315,200 = -
C. Deferved rax assets/liabilities As at As at
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deflerved tax assets
Unabsorbed b losses and dep 341 54 443 38
Loss allgwance for trade receivables 131 067
Loan to holding compamy 12891 {4379
Lease labnliy 480 -
Securty deposu Lged| -
Provision for employee benefits 173 I 83
43050 89,69
Delierred tax liabilities
Property. plam and equipment and miangible assets 180 50 160 21
Rught of use asseis 480
Crhers - -
165.30 16021
Deferred tas assets (ned) 315.20 429,48
RIER. -

Deferred 1ax assets/{liabililies) recognised




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN U510t BL201V PTCH4129

MNotes to the Bnawcial siatements for the year caded 31 March 2025
AL amounts in Rupees Mitlion, uniess osherwise staved)

D. Movement in temporary differences

3 March 2025
Bal as al M during the year Balamve as at
1 April 2024 (B) 3 March 2025
Parviculars
(A) (C=A+H)
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed L loss and dep 44333 {101 84) 341.54
Logs allowance for trade receivables 067 0,64 1.3
Loan to holding comparry 14379 (14.88), 128.91
Lease lability - 4.30 480
|Securnity deposit - 0.21| 021
Provision for employee banefits 1 85 188 3in
550.69 {109.19) 4580.50
Deferred tax liabilivies
|Property, plant and equipment and i ible assels 160 21) (029) (160.50)
|Right of use assets - (4.80) {4.30)
{160.21} (5.08) {165.30)
Net deferred tax asset 429.48 1114.28) 315.20]
31 March 2024
Balance as at Deferved tax on differences Balance as at
1 April 2023 generated but mod 31 March 2024
Particulars recognised a:nnl;ing the year
(A) {C=A+B)
Delerred tax assets
Unabsorbed b loss and def 72574 (282 36) 44338
Loss all for trade receivables 1.55 (0.83) Q.67
Loan to helding company 157 OB {11.29) 143.75
Provision for employee benefits 1.3% 0.46, 1 .85
BEE. 76 [296.07), 589,69
Deferred tax linbilitics
Property, plant and equip and intangible assets (161 38) 1.17] (160.21)
Others (0-40) 0.40) -
{161.78) 1.57 {160.21)
Net deferred tax asset 723.98 {294.50) 429.48)
E. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of carry forward b losses, unabsort ion and other y differences. In the realisabulity of its deferred tax assels,

the has idered 5 years busi p

carry Forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised

F. Tax logses carried forward

Tax losses for which no deferred tax assel was recogmised as at 31 March 2024 with &xpiry date are as follows:

that such projections are reliable and represent convineing ewi

As at

dence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the

31 March 2024

Expiry Date
(Financial year}

2028-20

2029-30

2030-31
Never expire

As at
31 March 2024

035

Amgaml

Business loss 108 51
Business loss 1,075 06
Business loss 59718
Unabsorbed depreciation 51828
Oiher non-current assels As at
Unsectired, considered pood) 31 March 2025
Capital advances 10 5%
Advances other Lthan capital advances
Prepaid expenses 004
Taxes paid under appeal 669

134

332




SAMHI JV Business Hotcls Private Limited

CIN USS101DL2#E 1 FTC21 4129

Motes 10 the Anancial sratements for the year ended 31 March 2025
FAIl amonnis i Rupees Mitlion, uniess otrerwise siaad)

19 Inventories AS at As
fvadned af the lowar of cost and nes realisable value) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Food and beverages i 535
5.78 535
I
1t Corrent Gnanclal assets - Trade receivables Ay As al
(Lhesecuredd 31 March 2025 31 March 2824
Trade receivables
Considered good £445 3156
-Credin impaired zle 143
Unbilled mevenue *
-Consuiered good 270 1403
Fob 3661
Less: Lote allewance (320 1267
A9 5395
=
* Mot of advance om customers of INE. 17,22 (3] Macch 2024 - INR 3.73)
a) The Company's exposune 1o credil and curmency risks. and loes allowances rolaied (0 trade receivables ane disclosed in Note 37
b For recoivables secured agamst borrowings. refer 10 Noie 12 and Molg 20
Trade receivable apcing schedule
As at 31 March 2015
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
. Less thun & | 6 ssomths - | More than 3
Particuta - - Tedad
cukars UmbiRed Revenue Mo U 1-2yean 2-Fyeary Sear
1) Lindis| Trade recenvailes — considored good 279 3628 TH 093 - - 924
(i3 Undisputed Trade recenables — credin impaired - - - - 115 L 216
Toisd 27.99 5618 T2 | 5 1.15 1.01 91,60
As at 3 March 2024
Owstanding for follow rom the dale of Iransarfion
Purtigmlary Unbikted Revenue Lessthant fd . 1-2years 2-3years ore than 3 Tolal
monlhs ¥EAr YeArs
tcd Trade receivables - considered 1403 3831 131 [ - - 5559
oted Trode reccivables = credit mpnired - - - - 049 054 L3
1403 3891 .21 1.4 0.4 054 662

The Company dots nol have any dispulod bade reccivables as 21 3| March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

SWESS

S




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
CIN U55101DL2011 PTC214129
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Al amormis in Rupees Millton, unless oiherwise stated)

12 Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

13

14

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- On curent accounts

Current financial assets - Others
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits
Other receivables*

* Refer Mote 36 for related party balances.

Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

Staff advance

Advance to suppliers

Balance with statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses #

Other advances

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.19 0.20
94,15 105.37
94,34 105.57
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
4.32 237
13.61 6.61
17.93 8.98
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.37 Q.10
4.42 148
9.79 537
1234 9.16
1.24 0.13
28.66 16,29

# inctudes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting 1o INR 0.06 (31 March 2024 - INR 0,35)

& Co
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SAMMI JV Busiaess Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS16tDL 201 1PTC2I4129

Nudes to the financial statemends for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amaomnss in Ropees Million, anless othenrise stawec)

Agat As at
31 March 202% 31 March 2034
Number of shares Armound Number of shares Armount
15 Equity share capital
Aathorised share capital
Equity shares of INR. 10 sach 13.00,00,000 1,300.00 13,00,00,000 1,300.00
13,00,00,000 1.300.00 13,00,00,000 1,300.00
Isyued, subscribed and fully paid wp
Equity shares of [NR. 10 each 12,47.80.000 1,247.80 12,47,80,000 1,247.80
1247.80,000 1.247.80 12,47.80,000 1,247.50
e, —
a) Reconciliation of the equity shares sunstanding at the beginaing and at the end of reporting year
For the year ended For the year emded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
MNumber of shares Ameent Number of shares Amoun{
Teswed, subscribed and fully paid up
At the beginning oF the year 12,47,80,000 1,247.80 12,47.80,000 1,247.80
Balsmce at the end of the year 124780000 1.247.50 12,47.80,000 1.247.80
b) Righis, pref and restrictions attached ts equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of INR 10 per share, Each holder of equity share is entilled ta one vote per share The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as and when declared
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will bs aniilled to receive remaining assets of he Company, afler distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the
number of ¢quity shares held by the sharcholders

c} Shares held by holding/eitimate holding pany and/ or their subsidiaries’ ?

Asat Ag at
Narme of shareholder 31 March 2025 3 March 2024

Number of shares Ameunt Number of shares Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each
SAMHI Hotels Limited {Helding Company)™ 12,47, 20,000 1.247.80 12,47.20,000 1,247 80
) Details of sharcholders holding more tham 5% equity shares

Asat Ag at
Name of sharchokler 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Number of shares %o of heddimz Number of shares “a of holdimg
Equity shares of INR 10 each
SAMHI Hotels Limited, Holding Cornpany * 11,47,50,000 100%% 12,47,80,000 100%
*1 equiry share is held by Mr. Gyana Das as a nominee sharsholder.
£} No shares have been allotted withour payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of five yers immediately preceding the Balance Sheet dare
) Details of promaters shareholdimg as st year and

Asat 31 March 2025
S.Ne Promaoier

No. of shares at the Change during  No. of shares at the =, of Tatal Sh % chamge during

inning of the year the year emd of the vear the year
1 SAMHI Hotels Limitad (Holding Company) 12,47,80.000 - 12,47,80,000 100% -
As ot 31 March 2024
5.Ne 3 - No. n(sham at the Change during Mo of shares of the % of Tetal Shares Yo change during
begi 2 of the vear the vear cnd of the year _ the year
1 SAMH] Hotels Limited (Holding Company) 12,47,80,000 - 12,47,80,000 100% =
Other equity As at As al
31 March 202% 31 March 2024
Capital reserve 1244 9244
Retained eamings {1,085.82) (1,842 29)
[ ronal Wteres| cong of boan o holding company (610.54) (610.54)
Equity component of ible det 80620 206,20
{857.72) (161419
Az At Asar

a) Retsined earnings
3 March 2625 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginoing of the year (1,842 29 {2,034 54)
Profit for the year T56.54 192 50

Transferred from remeagurement of defined benefit obligation (0.07) (0.25)
Balance at the end of the vear (1,085.82) {1,842.29)

Revained eamings represent the amount of accurmulated logses of the Company

b) C onal interest of loan 40 Holding Campany As at As at

31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year (610.54) {610.54)
Balance ar the end of the year (611.54) (610,54}

This represents the cancessional interest component of the nterest free loans given 1o the Holding Company

As al As at

¢) Remeasorement of defined benedit obligation
3 March 2025 31 Mavch 202¢

Balance at the begwinning of the year - -
Remeasurements of defined benefit habulingfasset (et of 1ax) {0 1025y
Transfarred 1o retamed arnings 007 025
Balance at the end of the year r: =

Remeasurements of defined Benefit hability:: P J gawns and losses




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Linited

CIN USSI0IDL2C11PTC2 14129

Nates to the Nmandial starements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(A8 amounits in Rupees Million, wiless otherwise siated)

d) Capital reserve As As at

31 March 2025 3 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 34y 1744
Additions made during the year = -
Balance ar the end of the year 3244 3244
This regrasents capital reserve recoghised on gain on early repayment of loan by Holding Compary
¢} Equity P of ertible deb As s As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 806.20 $06 20
Met gain on Fair valuation of equity comp af ible: deb - -
Balance at the end of the year 806.20 506,20
Dwring the financial ysar ended 31 March 2022, the company hed jssued 4,100 unlisted, secured, redesmabl thle det of a face value of [NR. 1,000,000 each on the terms and conditions sel oul n

Debenture Trust Deed (DTD). As per DTD, retum on non-convertible dsbeniures was sum of Cash Payment in Kiad (PIK) and Conventible PIK. Cazh PIK was an amownt that woukd give the debenture holder a retum equal

to 14.50% pa compounded monthly during the term of debentures. Conventible PIK. was portion of accrued interest on the non-convertible debentures that was to be converted into equity shares of Helding Conpany in
accordance with the SAMH] shares allotment agrsement dated 19 January 2022 | the company, holding conpany and dek nustes:

During earlier years, the non-comvertible dsbentures have been settled where the cash PIK component has been paid and the C: ible PIK. comy has been d into 3,202,419 equity shares of the Holling
Company. The above equity component balancs represents the fair valus of the ible PIK obligation of ible det
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
CIN US5101DL2011PTC214129

Notes bo the financial statements for the year emded 31 March 2025
(4 amorines in Rupees Million, wrless otherwise stated)

19  Nowu carrent provisions As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for employee benefits
Graluity (Refer Nore 20} 107 068
Compensated absences (Refer Nale 29) 1.72 082
2.7 1.50
20 Corrent financial liabilities - Borrowings Asat Az at
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash credit and averdraft facilities from bank (secured) * 013 363.37
Current maturitics of long-term bomowings (Refer Nots 18) 99,00 110
.13 439,47
*Includes interest i ing to [ME 0013 {31 March 2024 - {NR. 2 94)
_Cash credit and overdrall facilities from bank
Particolars Sanctioned Initerest rate charged per anoum Repayment Security details
Amount 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Terms
{INR Millioas)
[CITIBANK, N.A 400.00) 3 months T-bill rate| 3 months T-bill rate|Repayable on |1} First exclusive morigage on the Assets of borrower and Assets of Co-
+ Margin (3.75%) i e[+ Margin (3 75%) i & |demand Borrowers (Barque Hotels Private Limited and Argon Hotels Private

S44%

10.77%

Limited), including morigage over leaschold nights for leased assets

it) Hypathecation on the receivables and Bank accounts.

i) 99% of share pledge of the borrowers shares and Non disposal
undertaking on the balance un-pledged from SAMHI Hotels Limited

) Carporate Guarantee of SAMHI Hotels Limited

21 Current financial lisbilities - Lease liabitities Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lease liabhties (Refer Note 44) S8 -
698 -
22 Current financial liabilities - Trade payables Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade payables
- lotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises (MSME) 1499 02
- total outstanding dues of crediiors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprises 103 .50 201.34
11849 20936
a) Refer Mole 39 for disclosures under Micro, Small ard Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED)
b) Refer Note 36 for dues to relaled parties
¢) The Company's exp o y and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 37
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Outstanding for following perinds from due date of trawsaction
Particulars Actrued expenses | Less than | year 1-2 years -3 years More tham 3 years Total
MSME + 14 99 = - 14.99
|Others 4043 63.06 0.01 - 103.50
Total 40.43 78.05 .01 - 113.4%
As at 31 March 2024
Outsianding for fellowing periods from due date of transaction
Particulars Accrued expenses | Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Muore than 3 years Tatal
MSME - 802 - - 8.02
Others &7 34 13400 - - 201,34
Total 67.34 142,02 - - 20036

The Company does not have any disputed dues which are payable as al 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2004




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL2011PTC214129

Notes to the financial statements for the year emded 31 March 2025
{AN amotnts in Rupees Miffion, unless otherwise siared)

23  Current financial liabilities - Others

[nterest acerued on borrowings (Refer Note 18)
Employes relaied payables

Payable for capital assets

Other payables

Security deposils received

24 Ouher current liabilities

Advance from customers
Statuiory dues payable

25 Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Mote 29
Compensated absences (Refer Note 250

Asat As at
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
4.00 135
11.37 615
220 132
3 1.58
0.26 026
17.33 10.66
Asat As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
10.04 397
36.02 26.56
46,06 .53
As at Az at
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
037 028
115 0.64
1,52 .92




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101DL20O1IPTC214129

Notes to the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 20258
fAH amounts in Rupees Miflion, nnless otherwise stated)

26 Revenue from opecations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sale of services
- Room revenue 1,267.69 1,041.79
- Food and beverage revenne 374.85 333.46
- Recreation and other services 50.57 56.34
1,703.11 1,431.59
Disaggregation of revenue information For the year ended For the year ended
31 March X025 31 March 2024
a) Revenue based om services
-Revenue from services transferred to customers at a peint of time 1,703.11 143159
-Revenue from services mansferred 1o customers over Hme 5 -
1.703.11 1.431.59
b) Revenue based on services
~Contracted price revenuef venue from contract with customers 1,703.11 1.431.5%
1,311 L431.59

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from s for which is recognized when the performance obligation is over/ services delivered, Advance
llection is recogmised when p isr d hefore the related perfi bligation is satisfied. This inclodes ad Teceived from the customer towards rooms / restaurant! banquets.
Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverape / provision of banquet services, Excess of over invoicing is recorded as unbilled
revenue, Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is same as the contracted price
Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 10.04 397
The amount of revenue of INR 3.83 (31 March 2024 INR 5.42) recognised in the ceporting period was included in ad from bal at the beginning of the period.
Trade Receivabley 89.39 5395
Note: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above trade receivables is converted into cash within the same operating cyche.
27  Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income from Gnancial assets ar amortised cost
« bank deposits 558 32
- on loan to holding company 83.34 132.03
- others 035 -
Provisions/liabilites no longer required written back - 349
Gain on sake of property, plant and equipment - .21
[nterest on income tax refund 0.53 .
Unwinding of discount on secarity deposit .13 -
Miscellanes income - 459
89.93 144.14
28  Cost of materials consumed For the year ¢nded For the year ended
31 March 10258 31 March 2024
Consumption of food and beverages
Inventory at the beginning of the year 535 510
Add : Purchases during the year 9221 87.37
Imventory at the end of the year (5.78) (5.35)
91.78 3712
29  Employee benefits exp For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 148,22 12263
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer 'a’ below) 10.59 928
Compensated absences (refer b below) 275 0.58
Seaff welfere expenses 16,82 14.16
178.38 146,65
a. Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contrib d ined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employess’

State Insurance, which are defined coniribution plans. The Company has ne obligarions other than 1o make the specified contributions. The coninbutions are charged 1o staement of profit or oss
as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Emplovees’ State Insurance for the year aggregated to INR 10 59 (31

March 2024 - INR 9 28}, Also. Refer Nowe 34

b. Compensated absences
The principal assumptions used in determining the obligation are as given below:

Particulars

Dizcounting rate p.a. pa——
Salary growth rate p.a
¢. Defined Benefit Plan

Gramity

\ T
cmplovee who

The Company has a defined benefit pramity plan. Evers
completed year of service The scheme is not funded

Y
ke -

Faor the year ended
31 March 2025
Yo
649
5.50

For the year ended
31 March 2024
A
715
550

S compflercd five vears or more hfgeNce sets a//g;t)lh/un deparure at 13 days satary (last drawn salarv} for each
N



SAMH) JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101DL201 1 PFTC2i4129

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{A4H amorints in Rupees Mitlion, wnless otherwise stated)

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as; investment risk, mherent interest rate risk + longevity risk and salary risk

Tnvestment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is caleulated vsing a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the

reporting period on government bonds.

Interest rate risk

The defined benefit obligation calculated usas a discount rate basad on government bonds, 1f bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to i

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best #stimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the

life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabitity

Salary rlsk

Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit abligation.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit

of profit or loss and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the said plan;

a) Exp recognised in the S t of Profit and Loss

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Crorent service cost .40 0.3
Interest cost 0.07 0,04
Total included in "Employee benefits expense’ 0.47 0.32
b} R recognised dicectly in other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year from:
- changes in financia) assumptions 002 -
- changes in experi dj 007 023
Amount recognised in other prehemsive losa/(income) 0.09 0,25
¢) Change in present value of benefit obligation

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 1 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the vear 0.96 .54
Cumnt service cost 0.40 0.28
Interest cost 0.07 0.04
Remeasurements of defined benefit labiliry/asset (net of tax) 0,09 025
Benefits paxd 109 {0.15)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1.43 0.96
&) Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet

Asat As at

Partlculars 31 March 2025 31 March 2014
Present valve of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 143 0.96
Funded status " 5
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 1.43 0.96
MNon-current 1.07 0.68
Current 037 0.28

¢} The principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity benefit obligation are as given below:

A at Asat
Partleutars 31 March 2025 3T March 2024
e k-

Economic assumptions
Discounting rate p.a. {i 6.49 715
Salary growth rate p.a. (it} 550 550
(1} The discount rate is generally based upon the marker yizlds available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a 1erm that matches that of the liabilities
(i1} The salary growth rate takes account of inflation. seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long rerm basis

As ar Asat

Demographic assumptions

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Retivernent age (years) 58 58
Withdrawal Rate

Ages W T

Lip to 30 years L] [

From 31 10 44 years Gl al

Above 14 vears 6l 6l

Montaiity rate 100% lodion assured lives 100%a Indian assured lives

1 The Company’s best estiniate of expense for

mortalicy {2012 - 14)

mortality (2012 - 14)



SAMH] JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN Us5101 DL2011PTC214129

Notes to the Rimancial statememts for the year ended 31 March 2025
{4l amownts it Rupees Million, unless othenvise stated)

2) Sensitivity analysis
R bly possible changes at the reporting date to one of the ralevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:
For the yesr ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Increase * Decrease * Increage * Decrease *
Dliscount cate {0.5% movement) (©.02) 092 o 0.01
Future salary growth (.5% movement) .02 {0.02) 0.01 0.01)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown,

* Positive amount rep i in pi
* Nepative amount represents decrease in provision

Sensitivity changes due to withdrawal and mortality are not material and hence not disclosed.

Weighted average duration of defined benefir obligation 1.16 years (3 | March 2024 | 14 years)
There was no change in the method and assumptions used in prepaing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

h) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

As at

Year 31 March 2025
0 ) year 037
I to 2 year 046
2to 3 year 0.21
3 w4 year .10
4 10 5 year 0.04
5 to 6 year 0.0l
& year onwards 0.25
144

As at

Year 31 March 2024
Oto 1 year 023
| to 2 year 026
2103 year 0.13
3 1o 4 year 0.06
410 5 year 0.02
5 to 6 year 0.01
6 year omwards 0.20
0.%




SAMHI J¥ Business Hotets Private Lanited

CIN Us51tDL2011PT 214129

Notes to the Mmantial stiements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AR amonnss in Rupees Million, wnless atherwize staved)

30 Fimamce costy For the year cuded For the year eaded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest expenss on financial liabilities carmied at amortized cost
~ Loans from banks and financial insaniions 321 54 411 66
- Loan from Holding Comipany 832 13.60
- Others - L&0
- Lease linhifities 117
Tntevest expense on delay in depasit of statulory dues 049 122
Other finance costs 11.65 33.08
34307 460,56
31 Depreciation and amortisation axpense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Deprecistion on prop plant and equip (Refer Note 3) §8.03 100,96
Depreciation of Right-to-use assets (Rafer Note 3) 371 :
Amonisation of intangible assels {Refer Note 4) 005 -
91.34 100.96
32 Other expenses For the year ended Far the year eaded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Repair and maintenance
- Building 0969 763
- Idachinery 1026 1790
- Others 1253 4322
Adverti: and bus p TRdZ 61.16
Commission 8737 68 97
Communication 368 448
Consumption of slores and supplies 4052 B2
Contraciuzl fabour 26 90 2435
General administration expanses 310 T4
Insurance 280 258
Lega! and professional charges 116.43 133 84
Loss on foreign exchange fluchuztion {net} 350 417
Loss on disposal of property, plant and Loe )
Management and incentive fees L1261 9T
Paymemn to auditors® 220 278
Power, fuel and water 54.60 5782
Loss all for rade receivables (Refer Note 11) 254 -
Rales and tixes 4.6l 27 83
Trainiog expenses 287 257
Traveliing expenses an 22 63
Miscellaneous expenses 1663 798
sie31 T
*Payment to anditors
Smtutory audit 200 220
Reimbursement of expenses 020 058
2.20 2,78
33 Earniags per share (EPS)
Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the prafit for the year atibutable to equity shareholders by the d average number of equity shares outslanding dunng the year
Diluied EPS # caloulated by dividing the profit for the year anributable to the equity sharehold by weighted g& number of equity shares outstanding dunng the year plus the weighted average number of equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
MNei profit attrit le to equiry sharehold 756.54 192 50
Weighted average number of equity shares oursiznding during the year for calculation of basic EPS 12,47,80,000 12,47.80,000
Weighted average number of equity shares oulsianding during the year for calculation of diluted EPS 12,47.30,000 12,47,80,000
Nominal value of equity share (INR} 10 00 1006
Basic eamings per share (INR) 4606 1.54
606 154

Diluted eamings per share (INR}




SAMHLJY Bosiness Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL201IPTC214129

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amonres in Rupees Million, snless otherwize siated)

34

(a}

(b)

35

Contingent linbilities and commitments

fto the exsent mat provided for)
As at As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2424

Commitments

Estimated amount of coniracts remairning to be executed on capial - -
account and others

Contingent llabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Total demand |  Amount paid under Total demand Amount paid under
protest protest

| Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 178.40 6.6% 17840 =

Total 178.40 £.69 178.40 -
a In February 2019, Supreme Coun of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowanos that should be idered 1o bligati under The Employees’ Provident Funds And
Miscetlaneous Provision Act, 1952 The Company has been legally advised that there are p hallenges on 1he ap ion of j pectively and as such does not consider there is

any probable obligations for past periods. For the period 1 March 2019 10 31 March 2019, the Company has made a pm\nsmn for provident fund contribution in the books of accounts amounting o TNR.
029

b During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had received a notice under Chapler ¥ of the Finance Act, 1994 for the period FY 2014-15 to FY 2017-18 {upto June 2017) on grounds of
excess availment of CENVAT credit and short payment of service tax involving & amount of INR 178 40 including inlerest and penally under Section 75 of Ihe Finance Acl, 1934 and Rule |5 of the
Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 and Section 7% of 1he Finance Act, 1994

During the year, the Company has preferred an appeal before the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal against the said addition which is pending for disposal

The management is of the view that based on the merits of the arguments put forward and facts of this case, the outcome 14 likely to be in the favour of the Company and no provision is required to be
erealed in the books

Operating Segments
The Holding Company's Chief Executive Ofﬁcer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decition Maker {'CODM", since he is res'ponstble for all major decisions w.r L the prep and
of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility. CODM has ined the Company's perfe from product and geographic

perspective and has identified a single business segment j.c. "Developing and running of hotels", hence no specific disclosures have been made.

a) nformation about produets and services
The Company primarily deals in one busi namely "Daveloping and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosurs is not applicable

b} Information about geopraphical areas
The Company pravides services to cuslomers in India. Further, there are no assets located outside India

<) Information about major customers (from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from ane customer which would amount to 10 per cent or more of the Company s revenue




SAMHI IV Business Hotels Peivate Limired

CIN US5101DL 21 1IPTC214129

Notea to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amovints in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

36 Related party disclosures

a} Relaied party and nature of related party vdatiomship where comtrol exjsts:

|Nature

|HOIdinv Comparry | SAMHI Holels Limited

Name of related party

) Refated parties with whom Iramsactions have taken place during the current year snd previous year:

Description of relationship

Name of relaied pariy

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

CASPIA Hetels Privale Limited

Argon Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI Hotels (Ah

dabad) Private Limiled

Duet India Hotels (Ah

dabad) Private Limiled

Dhuet India Hotels (Hyderabad) Privale Limited

Dust Indiz Hotels (Chennai) Prvate Limiled

Duet [ndia Hotels {Jaipur) Privale Limiled

Duet [ndia Hotels (Pung)

Privale Limited

Barque Hotels Private Limited

<} Related party tramsactions during ihe current year/previous year:

Particulars

Haldi

£

Felow Subsidiaries

3 March 2025

3 March 2024

3 March 2025

31 March 2024

Legal and prolessional charges

SAMHI Hotels Limited

68 83

94 74

Interest income from financisl assets at amortised cost

SAMHI Hotels Limited

83 34

13203

Loan received from

SAMHI Holels Limited

366.00

S00.00

Repayment of loan received by the Company

SAMHI Hotels Limited

366,00

SpAY t ol lgan (i

luding interest acerued)

AMH] Hotels Limited

150.00

366.19

Loan received (from SAMHI Hotels Limited) adj

| against loam given by the Company

SAMHI Hotels Limilad

51224

Inierest expense on Mnancial liabilities carried at amortised cost

SAMHI Hotels Linited

832

13.60

[
‘Reimlmrsement of axp es (net)
SAMHI Hotels Limited

CASPLA Hotels Private Limited

916

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Privats Limited

325

Argon Hotels Private Limited

820

'-Bamue Holels Privare Limiled

Duel India Holels {Ahmedabad) Povale Limited

137

Dugl India Hotels {Hyderabad) Private Limited

4.07

Dugt India Hotels (Jaipur) Private Limited

1.08

Duet India Hotels (Puns) Povate Limited

193




SAMMI JV Business Hotels Private Limled

CIN US5101DL20O1IPTC214129

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{AH amovnis in Rupees Milfion, unless otherwise siased)

d) Related party balances as at year end

Particulars Holding Company Fetlow Subsidiaries
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 A1 March 2024

Trade payables
SAMHI Hotels Limnited 481 11836 - -
SAMHI Hotels { Ahmedabad) Private Limiled - - 043 .10
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited = - 0.1 0,32
Loan to holdi ¥ (including Interest accrwed) {refer to Note 5)
SAMHI Hotels Limiled 544 59 71168 > -
Capital reserve
SAMH] Hotels Limited 3244 37 44 =
Concessional interest compoment of loan to holding company
SAMHI Hotels Limited 61054 610.54 -
Equity component of mon-comvertible deb €5
SAMHI Hotels Limited £06 20 206 20 - -
Other receivahles
SAMHI Hotels Limited - 0.49 -
SAMHI Hotels ( Ahmedabad) Private Limited = - 015 -
CASPLA Holels Privale Limired - - 1.49 -
Duet India Hotels { Abmedabad) Private Limited - - 004
Duet India Hotels (Hyderabad) Private Limited - - I 56 -
Dt India Hotels {Jaipur) Private Limiled - - 004
Duet India Hotels (Pune) Private Limiled - - 008 -
[Argon Hotels Private Limited = - 035

Nole:

(i) Refer Nole 18 and Mote 20 for the securities/ guaranices provided/ received by the Company on behalf of its related entities for loans obtained from banks and financial institutions,

(i) The Company has provided securities an behalf of foliowing fellow subsidiaries:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- Barque Hotels Private Limited 315200 3,152.00
- Argon Holels Private Limited 1.338.00 1,338.00
(Rep the limits d by banks and fi ial i to fellow 168 on
of the security given by the Company)

o]

h

(it} The transactions with related partics are within the ordinary course of b

each reporting period

at the year-cnd are unsecurced and sertlement occurs in cash.
{iv) For the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has nol recorded any impairment of receivables relating 1o amounis owed by relaled parties. This assessmend is undertaken at
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Nodes 1o the ((mancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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37 Finamrial instraments - Fair valwes amd risk mamagement

A} Fingncial instrements by category and fair value

The below mble the jud and esli made in determining the fair values of the financial i that are (a} ized and d al fair valve and (b} measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial To provide an indication aboul the reliabihty of the inputs used i determining fair value. The Company has classified its financial instrumemis into the three
Jeveks p ibed under the i dard
| Particulars As at 31 March 2025
Level of hievarchy Fair ¥Yalwe Fair ¥alue Through | Amortised Cost
Through Profi Orther
aad Loss Comprehensive
{F¥TPL) Tecome {FVYTOCH)
Fi ¥l assets
Non-current financial assets - Loans 2 - - 54459
Non-current finaneial assets - Others - - 17444
Current financial ascets - Trade receivables - - £3 39
Curvent financial assets - Cash and cash eauivalents - - 9434
Current financizl assels - Others - - 1793
Todal financial asseds - - 1.020.69
Fmancial lisbilities
MNon-curren fi | liabilities - B: i z - - 284779
Non-current financizl liabilites - Lease Liahilities 12,10
Current fi ial liabilities - Borrawings ] - . 9913
Currend finzncial liabilities - Laase Liabilivies 6,98
(Current fi | lakilities - Trade b, - - 115,49
Current financial liabilitiss - Others - - 17.32
Total Minancial liabifities - - 3,102,32
Particulars Az at 31 March 2024
Level of hierarchy Fair Value Fair Yalue Theough | Amortised Cost
Throwgh Profis Orileer
and Loss Comprehensive
{FVTPL) Income (FVTOCT)
Financial assels
Non-cuirent financial assets - Loans 2 - - Ti68
Non-current financial assets - Others - - 171,79
Curreni financial assets - Trade receivables - - 53.95
Current financia) assets - Cash and cash equivalents - - 105.57
Current financial assets - Cihers - - 898
Total financial assets - - 1,053.97
|Fi 1 liabikities
(Mon-current fr liabilities - B ngs 2! - - 2042 34
(Current financial habilities - Barrowings 2 - - 439 47
Current financial liabilities - Trade payabl - - 209.36
Curvent firancial abilities - Others B - 10.66
Total financial labilaies - - 3.602.33

Fimancial assets and Babilities wieasured at amortised cosi - Fair value measurements As at Asat
31 March 2025 3 March 2024

Non-turrent financial assets
Loans {interest free loan) (Levet 2) * 589,30 485 47

* Represents fair value of loan 1o holding company

Significant unobservable inputs used by the Company 10 determine Fair value of lpans (nierest free loan) is discount rate (31 March 2025 10.13% pa and 31 March 2024: 11 50% pa)

The fair value of irade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets, current bomowings, current Irade payables and other current fi ial linbilities approxi their carrying amounts, dus to
their shent-term namre

Interest rales on non-current borowings (borrowings from banks and fi ial mskotions) are equivalent to the market rate Such bomrowings are al Moanng ries which are reset at shorl imervals  Accordingly, the
carrying value of such borrowings spproximates fair vaive

Fair valuation of other it fi | assets has been disclosed 1o be same as carrying valus as there is no significant difference between carrying value and Far value

Fair value of benk deposins (included in ather non-curment financial agzets) and loan 1o holding company |interest beanng loan] are equivalent to their carmying amount, as the interest rare on tem is equivalent 10 market
rate

Fair value measurement of lease Nabilities 1s not required to be disclosed
Valuation technique used 1o determine fair vatue

Specific valuauon echmque used to value Nnancial msiruments nclude
- the Fatr value for baan 1o holdnyg company {interesi free loan) 15 calculated based on cash lows discourusd uging current lending rate

B} Measuremen of fair valuey

Fair values are calegonised nto dilferent levels in g Faor value hierarchy based on the 1nputs used n the v aluatio
2025 and 31 March 2034

& & C-o
@ \C
o ( Gurugram fU'

n techniques There hos been no Uransfer berween Level 1, Level 3:||||1-T_,|.-‘u.‘ ] b

+



SAMHI 7V Business Hotels Privace Limited

CIN USSIHIDL201IPTC2 14129
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) Financial risk management

Risk management framewerk

The Company’s aclivilies expose it 10 a variety of financra! risks: market risk {including foreign sxchange risk and interest rate risk), cradit nisk and Liquidity risk.

The Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer under the directions of the Board of Di impl financial risk policies across the Company. The Company's risk management policies are

established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and cont.mls o momlor rigks and adherence 1o limits in order to minimize the financial impact of such risks. The risk
policies and are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's

i, Credit vk

Credit rigk 15 the risk of financial loss 1o the Company ifa or pasty oa hi Li fails 10 meet its contractual obligations. The camying amount of fmancizl assets rep the maxi eredit

risk exposure. The Company has credi policies in place and the exposures te these cradit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis

The Company’s policy is to place cash and cash equivalems and other bank balances with banks with gaod credit rating

The Company has given security deposits to various stanilory authorities and vendors for securing services from them and rental deposits For empl d The Company has loan receivable balance
oulslanding as at year end fom its holding company. The Company does not expect any defaull fram thess parties and accordingly the nsk of defaultis negllg:ble ar nil

In respect of credit exp from trade receivables, the Company has poiicies in place to ensure that sales on credit without collatersl are made principally to Tavel agents and corporate companies with an appropriate
credit history. The Company has established a credlt policy under which each new is analysed individually for credi hi before ing into Sales ko other customers are made in cash or by
credit cards

The Comgp blishes an all for impairment that represents it expecied credit Iosses in respect of rade receivables The mznagement uses a simpiified approach for the purpose of compuation of sxpected
credin loss for rade receivables. In monitormg customer credil risk, are group ling to their credit characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, indusiry and existence of

previous fimancial difficulvies, if any.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company
The Company considers a financial asset 1o be in default when:

+ the debior is unlikely to pay its credit obligations 16 the Company in full: or
= the financial esset is more (han two years past due

The provision matix used For d ining loss all on trade ivables as al 31 March 2025 is less than 6 months: 2.30% {31 March 2024: ) 91%), 6 months - 1 year: 16 98% (3] March 2024: %.13%), 1 - 2 years:
48 62% - 70 8%% (31 March 2024: 35 68% - 65 37%) and more than 2 years: 100% (31 March 2024: 1008q)

Eeconciliation of loss allowance provision

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2028 31 Mareh 2024
Opening balance 257 615
Provision na longer required written back during the year - (3.48)
Provision made during the year 254 -
Closing balmnce 52 257

The impaicment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumplions about risk of default and expected loss rates The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecling the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of sach reporting pericd

iL. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in & the obligati iated with its financial liabiliti r]mmseﬂledbydelwenngcash or another Minancial asset The C 's approach
o managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, thal it wall have suﬁ'bclent liquidity to meet its Liabiliies when they are due, under both normal and d conditions, without § ng prable loszes or risking
darmage 10 Company's
M itors rolling F of 1be Campany’s liquidity positi and cash and cash equivalents on the basis ofexpa:red cash flows to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet cperational needs, Such f ing
takes mto iderztion the Company’s debt refinancing plans, und db g Facilities and F
Uliimate responsibility for liquidicy risk rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk fi k for the of the Company's short-term,
mediyem temn and kong-term funding and liquidi qui
(a) Exposure 1o Bquidity risk
The following ars the ining | matwrities of financial liabilities at the repoming dare The amounts are gross and undi d and excluding future | interest
C | cash Mows {INR)
As at 31 March 2025 Carrying amousi Total -1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years
Now - derivative financial liabilaies
Mon-current borrowings 2534779 287320 - 178 20 &11 8O 1,388 20
Lease Liability 1508 207 698 T8 781 B
Current bomowings 9913 9900 o000 - - -
Current rade payables L1349 11851 11851 - € .
Other current financial liabilities 17 83 1783 1783 - - -
3,102.32 3.135.71 242,32 185.58 B19.61 1.888.20
Contractual cash flows [[NR}
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying amount Total 0-1 vear 1-2 vears 15 years Mare than 5 years
Non-devivative Ninancial liabikities
Mon-current borrowings 2943 84 297720 - 90 () 61120 320500
Current borrowings 43947 439 47 435 47 - . =
Current wrade payables 209 35 200 36 209 36 - . -
het current financizl labihues 1066 10 66 10 66 - . <
360253 3.636.69 65949 99,00 673,20 2,205.00
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{b} Financing arramgements

The Company had 2ceess to the following undrawn birrowing Facilities 2t the end of the reponing period:

A3 at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Floating rale
Expiring within one year {bank overdraft and other facilitas} 40000 3451
40000 34 51
il Market risk
Market rigk 15 the risk that the changes in markst prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, that will affect the Company's expense or the value of its holdings of financial i The oky of
rarket risk management is ta manage and control market risk exp within piabl while optimising the return
Curreacy risk
Currency risk for the Company is the risk that the future cash outflows on zccount ot‘payabls for manamernenl fass and other expenditure will £l t of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
exposed (o the efecis of Auctualion in the prevailing forsign h rales on s i positicn and cash flows E arises primarity due 1o exch raie fl jons b the fumctonal y
and other fes. The Managy ) foreign exchange raie sxp arising from foreign on petiodic basks and follows appropriate risk management policies
Eaposare to corrency risk
The Company’s exp o foreign misk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
1 March 2025 Currency Amount in foreign Arvount
correney INR ia milBons
{in millioms)
Fmancial Gabilivies
Trade payables usp 032 2780
31 March 2024 Currency Amount in foreign Amomnt
CHITEnCy INR in millions
{in milllions)
Finamcial limbiities
Trade payables usD 025 21.20
Sensitivity analysis
A bl ibl thening, (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against foreign currency ar year end would have affected the of financial instruments d inated in foreign y and affecied
equity znd pmﬁl ar boss by lhe amounts shown below. This anabysis assomes thar all pther variables, m particular interest rates, remain constant and ignoces any impact of forecast zales and purchases
(Profit)loss Equity, net of tax (increase)decrease
EiTect im INR Strengthening Weakenil Strengthening Waakeni
3 March 2025
USD { 1% movement) 0,28 [0 28) 028 {0.28)
8,28 10.28) 0,18 {0.28)
{Profit)loss Equity, m'i of fix (increase)/decrense
Effect in INR Strengihening Weakeni § h Weakenin.
31 March 2024
USD ( 1% movement) 21 {021} 02zl {021}
0.21 (021} 0.2 (021
Tmterest rate visk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial i will A b of changes in markel interest rates The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates peimarily (o the Company's bormowings with floating interest rates
The Company evaluates the inlerest raes m the market on a regular basis to explore the opfion of refl ing of the b gs of the Comp M . 2% at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company's
berrowings are linked to flpating inlerest rates, thereby resuhing in the adj of ils b ing ¢osts in line with the market interest
Exposure té inferest rate risk
The interest mte profile of the Company's interest-bearing financal instruments is as follows:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fined-rate instrements
Mon-current financial assets - Loan {Refer Moie 5) 644 55 Tl 68
Financial assets - bank depasils 165 43 165 20
Variable-rate insiruments
Finaneial lrabilities - Cash credit and overdraft facilities from bank ol 36837
Finansial lizbuliies - Term koans from banks 1.567 94 2001 27
Financizl labilines - Term loans from financial mstituions 982 86 1,004.02
Fair value sensitivity analysis for Mued-rate instrumenis
The Company does not account for any [(xed-rave financial assers o fi I liabalines 31 fair value throush profitand lass Therefore, a change 10 interest rates a1 the reporting date would not affect profi or loss Also,

refer Nowe 374 for Ranr value disclosure
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Cash Mow semsitivity analysis for variable-rate sstroments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis poinis in interest mues at the reporting date would have increased/{decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown balow. This analysis assumes that all other

variables, remain consgant.

As at 31 March 2025
Fmancial liabilites
As at 31 March 2024

Financial labilities

38 Capital Management

The Company’s policy is o mainmin a strong capital base 50 as to maintin investor, creditor and merket cenfidence and to sustin future development of the business

(Profit)yloss Equity, net of tax
(imeresseldecrease
180 bps imcrease 100 bps decrease 104 bps increase 100 bps decrease
3235 (32.35) 421 (2421}
3238 {323%) 2421 (24.21)
3360 {38 60) 33 60 (38 600
3860 {38,600 .60 (38.60)

The Board of directors of the Company seeks to maintain a balance betwesn the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of bomrowing and the advanuges and sscurity aRorded by a sound capilal position
The Company moniters capital using loan to value (LTV) method 10 ensure that the loan to value does not mereass beyond 55% on any given reporting date at a company level

The Company i not subject 1o y imposed capital

#s a part of its capital management policy, the Company did not have any defaulis in the repayment of loans and interest. Further, there have been no breach of loan covenants.
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39 Disclosares under Miero, Small and Medium Esterprises Develop Auct, 2006 (MEMED)
Asst As at
31 Marth 2025 31 March 2024

Dues to micre, small and medinm suppliers

The: smounts emaming vnpaid b migry snd omall suppliers as at the end of tho vear:

Principal amount 1202 553
Imzrest hercon 297 247

The amount of imerest paid by the buycr as per the Micre Smoll and Medium Eaterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) - -
The amounts of the pavments made 1o micro and mall suppliers boyond the appointed day during cach accounling year 45.11

The amount of iverest dus and pavoble fior the period of delay in making pavment (which have been paid but beyand the appoined day during -
the year) but without adding the inerest specified under MSMED Act 2006

The amounl of inierest acerued and remaining unpaid ol the end of cach sccounting vear 106 247

The amound of further imkcrest remaining due and payable even in the sucessding years. until such dale when the inlcrest duss as sbove are
achally paid v the small cnterprise for the purposc of disalk 5 a deduclibl diture wnder Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The managemend has identified ceerprises which have provided ponds and scrvicas to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enicrprises. as defincd under Micro. Small and Medium Enttrprisos
Development Aet. 2006 (MSMED). Accordingly, tho disclosure in cespeet of the amounts payable 1 such orierprises es al 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 has been made in the financial statoments based on snlormation
seceived and 2vailable with the Campary.

40 During the cument vear, SAMHI Howls Limited (the Holding Company) has charged MR 68 §3 (51 March 2024 - INR, 5. 743 for corc business advisory, procurement and other supporl sorvices. The same is booked as legal and
prokssional expense under the head 'other expenses”

41 New standards and interp ions, not yet adopted
Ministry of Corporate AMairs (“MCA™) notifics new standards or amendments 1o the cuisling | under Companics {Indian A ing Standards) Rubss as isswed Gom time o tme On 7th May 2025, MCA issued the
Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Amend Rules, 2023, which made ceraim amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Ralcs, effective from | April 2025, These amendmenis defing
v exch bility and nclude guidance on cstimating spat exchanps ralcs when a currency is net cxchangeoble, The Company does nol expert this h 10 have any signi impact in its financial statemcnis
42 Ratios as requiced by Schedule I to the ies Act, 2013
Ralio In timesi%e Nemetalor Deasminator 31 March 2628 31 March 2024 Inereasef decrease %
Current Ratio In limes Total current assels Tatal current lishilitics 081 028 196%
Deti-Equity Rate In umes Tolal Borrowmgs Total equuty 733 (923} 182%|
- i . Eamings before inance eost, depreciation|Inicrest  Payments  +  Pringipal T
Debl Serviee Coverage Ratio In bmcs and amonisalion and lax Rep 114 126
Return on Equatr Ralio In % Profd B ihe year Avcrage Total equity MA NA ba
Iivemony urmover ratic In umes Cost ol 3 sold Averaps I NA NA Na
Teade Reccivables umaver estio In imes Revenue feom opcrations Avcraga Trade Recoivables 1376 2325 %
Trade payables mmover ratio I bomes E:::mz]; 4™+ Ciherifverage Trads Payables 450 312 hate
Mot capital wmever ratio In tiriey. Revenue from operelions Average working capilal 614} {266 131%
Met peaflt ratio In% Profi for the year |Rcvcm:e Trom operalions Fre 13% 220%
Relum on Capital cmployed n Profit before finonce coats amd lavcs Tangible Nt Worh + Total 2% P %
Borrowings

Retumn on investmonts 1n% Intcrest (Finance Income) |Investmen NA MA Ha
Explanations to variance in Ratios:

Higher due 1o rise in trade receivable and fall in trade pavable

Higher due o increase in PAT and reducuon in borrowings

Higher due to rise m PAT and repavment ol‘borwwinE in the currenl vear

Lower du¢ 1o desroase in trade pavable

Higher due 1o deerease in averag ative} in current vear as compared Lo previous vear.

The Company has nol prescntcd the Fllowing ratos duz 1 the reasons given bolow:

() Inveniory momover ratic: Sinct: the valuo of invenlory is msignifican as compared 1 the lotal asseis

(b} Rewurn on investments; Since the Campany ivests surplus emporary funds in shor term bank deposits and the income pencraied is insignificont W (ol mmover
(£} "Relum on cquily” ralio cannot be meaningfills compuied and henee have nol been disclosed in the financial sisements

44 Lease disclosures
The Company has obtained office spaces on lease, This keasc is Jong lerm in nawre and abso contains an option 1o rencw the lease on or belore the expiry of lease peniod, The Company has discounted keasa pavments Lsing the
meremental bormowing rale ¢f ¢ 72% for measuring the leasc liabjlity.

The: following Lable presents 2 maturity anabysis of cxpected undistountcd cash Sows for Teass liabikitics:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
01 yoar 6.9% -
L-2 years 733 -
2-5 years TEI
More than 5 years - -
Tatal lease payments 2217 -
The li of lease habilwies 15 as follows
Particalars As an 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
|Opemng balance . -
Addi 2 B4
Amounis recounized in slalement of profit and loss a3 117
Paymen of lease liabili !mcludﬂ; inlerest 1393 -
Closing Bal. {Refer Note L7 and 2t) 1908 -
Particulars As ar 31 March 2025 As at 31 Mareh 2024 E—
Non current lease abilines 1210 = & C
Current Jeaze fiabulines 693 - Q\ (o]
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45 Qther statutory information

(i} The: Company does poi have amy Bonami peeperty, where any proceeding has boen initiawd or pending asainst the Company for holding sy Beasmi property.

(i) The Company do nat have any wansactions with companics sruck off

{in} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statukory peried

(iv) The Company has rot iraded or mwvestcd in Cryplo currency or Vinual Currency during me iimmla.l year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loancd or invesicd funds o amy other p ) tuding foreign crtiics (1 diarics) with the und ding that the iary shall:
(a) direetly or indircculy kend or mvest im olher persons or enlitics denu.l’nd i any mamer whaiscever by or on behall of the Company (Ulimate Benedcinries) o
(b} provide any muaraniee, st¢urity or the like 1o or on behalf of the Liiimate Beneficiaries

{31} The Compay hes not received any fund from amy person(s) or enlitv(icz), including forcign entitics {Fonding Party) with the und ding {whether ded in wriling or othorwise) that the Company shall:
{a) dirccily or indirecthy Tend or invest i other persons or entities ientificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behall' of the Funding Party {Ullimate Bencficiarics) ar
{b) provide any guarantec. security or the kke on behall of the Ullimate Beaeliciarics

{¥ii) The Company has not entered any such transacton which is not recorded in the books of thal has been dered o disclosed as income during the vear in the tax assessmenis under the Income Tas Act, 1961
{such a5, scorch or survey or any other rebevant provisions ol the Income Tax Act, 19613

{1} The Company has not been doclancd wil ful defaulicr by any bank or finaneial insinution or govemment of any governmend authority

{ixx} The Company has not granicd wy boans or advances in the namire of lans Lo promoters, directors, KMPs and Lhe relalsd parties (a5 defined under Componics At 201 3) cilber stverally or joindly with any other person thet
are repayable on demand or wilthout specifitng any Lerms of period of payment.

(=) The Compamy has uscd the borrowings Fom bank and financial instimution (or the specific parposc for which il was taken

{xd) The: Compary has complied with oumber of layors prescribed under the Companics Acy, 2013

(i} The Company has nol entered inlo any seheme of arrangement which bas an accounling impact on currend year o previous financial year

{08} The Company has nod revalued its property. plam and equipment of intangible 250t or both during current voar of previous year

(%) The Company is not requircd ko submit quarierby retune or stalements wilh banks during the el yoar o7 previous year.

tev) The tirle deeds of immaovable property disclostd i the fnanciel sistements aro beld in the name of the Company. However, original e decds are under lien with kender,

46 SAMHI Hotels Limiked {*the holding Compam '} vide its sharc-holder mecting daled 20 May 2025 ap d primary ad ipuon of equiry shares by Reco Bellfllower Privawe Limitcd, an affiliale of GIC Pie
Limiicd (*Invesior') o hohd 35% of i cquity share capital {on a fully-dilued basis} of Ascent Hol;ls Privale lelcd SAMHL IV Business Heizls Private Limited and Innmar Tourism and Hoiels Privawe Limiled (‘Targer
Companics’). The comb P vahcol'lln:‘l'mc«npamcshasbem ageribed at INR 22,000 million

As per our repon of ¢ven dole atached /
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behali o Board of Dircclors of
Charvered Acconnsanits SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limied

ICAl Firm Regismation No-; 10] 248WAV - 100022

hw Nﬁ‘J tm,

Anjans Kumari

Rahul Nayar

Farmer Direcior Direator Company Sacretary
Membership Ne.. 508605 DIN: B6813081 DIN: 085359291 Membership Mo A35561
PMace: Gurugram Place: Cungram Place: Grarugram Place; Gurugram

Dac 29 Maﬂ 023 Dxe: 28 Ma.ﬂ was Dawe: 2§ Mau 2025 Due: 2 May 2025



